
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

Ref:  CA/KR/EP/27.04.21 
 
19 April 2021 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - ENVIRONMENT & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the  
Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee on 

Tuesday, 27th April, 2021 at 6.30 pm 
 

This will be a meeting held in line with The Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority & Police & Crime Panel Meetings) England & 

Wales) Regulations 2020. 
 

This meeting will be held virtually via Zoom and streamed live via the following link: 
 

www.mybostonuk.com.youtube 
 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Judith Skinner 
Vice Chairman: 
 

Councillor Judith Welbourn 

 
 
 
 
Portfolio Holder: 

Councillors Alison Austin, Peter Bedford, David Brown, Anton Dani, 
Deborah Evans, Paul Goodale, Neill Hastie, Aaron Spencer, 
Chelcei Trafford and Paul Skinner                       
 
Councillor Paul Skinner 
 

 
 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.mybostonuk.com.youtube/


 
 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 
PART 1 - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A.   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 10) 
 

 To sign and confirm the  minutes of the last meeting, held on 5th January 2021. 
 

B.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

C.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Thursday, 22nd April 2021. 
 

 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   MEMBER LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY - 2021 to 2024 (Pages 
11 - 22) 
 

 (A report by James Gilbert, Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate 

Services) 

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Paul Skinner  

 

2   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 23 - 42) 
 

 (For Members to note/discuss the Committee’s current work programme) 
 

3   REGULATING AND SAFEGUARDING BOSTON'S ECONOMY TASK AND 
FINISH GROUP - UPDATE ON AGREED RECOMMENDATIONS (Pages 43 - 58) 
 

 (A report by Christian Allen, Assistant Director - Regulation) 

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Paul Skinner  

 

4   VERBAL UPDATE MEMBER WORKING GROUP - FLY TIPPING.  
 

 A verbal update on the work of the current Member Working Group on Fly Tipping. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Notes: 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Karen Rist, 
Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Telephone Number 01205 
314226.    email:  karen.rist@boston.gov.uk  
 
Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify as soon as possible 
giving the name of the Council Member (if any) who will be attending the meeting as their 
substitute. 
 
 
 
 
 
Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - ENVIRONMENT & 
PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 

5 January 2021 

Present: Councillor Judith Skinner (Chairman), Councillor Judith Welbourn (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Tom Ashton, Peter Bedford, Anton Dani, Deborah Evans, 
Paul Goodale and Neill Hastie 
 
In attendance: Councillor Peter Watson (Observer) 
 
Officers –  
Assistant Director - Regulation, Assistant Director - Operations, Climate Change and 
Environment Manager, Operations Manager, Transformation & Governance Manager 
and Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
71   APOLOGIES 

 
There were apologies for absence from Councillors David Brown, Martin Howard and 
Chelcei Trafford. 
 
72   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 1st October 2020 were agreed as a correct record to 
be signed by the Chairman. 
 
73   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
74   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None. 
 
75   TWIN STREAM RECYCLING COLLECTION 

 
The Assistant Director - Operations presented a report, which presented a proposal to 
expand the separate kerbside collection of paper and card across the Borough following 
a successful trial. 
 
There were 3,002 properties currently taking part in a trial to collect paper and card from 
the kerbside separately from the mixed recycling presented in the blue recycling bin.  
 
The Council stepped forward to trial this new ‘twin stream’ recycling collection service 
and it had demonstrated that the collections could achieve improvements in both the 
quality of the recycling collected and increase in materials captured for recycling. 
Positive feedback on using the service had been received from residents in the trial 
area. 
 
This project was the culmination of collaborative working with the Council’s partners in 
the Lincolnshire Waste Partnership, to meet the objectives of the Lincolnshire Waste 
Management Strategy, which would also meet the requirements of the forthcoming 

Page 1

Agenda Item A.



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
5 January 2021 
 

national legislation contained in the Environment Bill 2020, and the Council’s 
commitment to reduce its carbon footprint.  
 
The report detailed the proposal to expand this service for the separate kerbside 
collection of paper and card to the remaining properties within the borough, setting out 
the environmental benefits, and operational and financial impacts. It also took account of 
the Council’s commercial customers who would also need to take part in this twin 
stream recycling collection. 
 
The Portfolio Holder addressed the Committee and voiced strong support for the 
scheme and then raised the following issues:  
 

 The County Council should cover the cost of replacement bins as it would receive 
the surplus from the sale of the paper and card collected. ELDC’s Portfolio Holder 
agreed that County Council funding should be 3%, not the 1% offered. 

 The size of the bin would be an issue for residents in Victorian terraces etc. 

 All bins and side waste should be collected currently.  . There had been many 
complaints because bins and side waste had been missed over Christmas.  

 It was essential that both residents and staff received training. 
 
 
Members fully supported the scheme and felt that officers and refuse staff were doing an 
excellent job.  Various points were made, including: 
 

 Households having another bin on view in some streets would detract from the 
attractiveness of the area. 

 They had received many complaints from residents who did not have room for an 
additional bin with some having to take them through the house. 

 Houses in multiple occupation (HMOs) had not been included in the trial. 

 The monthly collection of the blue and purple bins might not be sufficient, particularly 
in lockdown when more waste was created.  Blue bins would be heavy with only 
been collected every four weeks. 

 There were conflicting views about the colour of bins; purple stood out too much and 
black would be less visible at night. 

 It would be useful to know the views of the Lincolnshire Waste Partnership and other 
Lincolnshire authorities about how they were tackling recycling. 

 It was satisfying that Boston would be at the forefront of the rollout and some initial 
problems were inevitable. 

 It could make a huge difference to contamination rates. 

 It would be preferable to try to secure additional funding. 

 There had been many problems over the Christmas period, particularly as there were 
no stickers on the bins to explain when collections would be made. 

 It was doubtful that the scheme would reduce the level of fly tipping; This had not 
been experienced in a ward included in the trial. 

 Side waste should be collected.  

 There needed to be further education regarding what went in each bin in order to 
avoid contamination. Facebook could also be used to get the message out. 

 The Council could liaise with letting agencies in order to ensure residents from all 
communities receive clear information.   

Page 2



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
5 January 2021 

 

 Provision of large communal bins on collection sites and managed ‘bring sites’ would 
be preferable to forcing people to have additional bins. 

 
The Assistant Director - Operations confirmed that the new bins would be black with a 
purple lid. 
 

Action: VB 
To discuss whether the purple bins used during the trial card and paper scheme will be 
retained or replaced with the black/purple bins 
 

 
The Portfolio Holder confirmed that discussions were ongoing with the County Council 
about installing cameras on lampposts in fly tipping hotspots. It was noted that they 
could also be fitted to trees. 
 
The Chairman was pleased that Boston was at the forefront of the scheme and thanked 
officers for their hard work and hoped additional funding would be secured.  It was 
essential to get the message across to the public; pictorial information was more 
effective in doing this. Communal bins could be provided for HMOs, perhaps with a 
combination lock.  
 
The Assistant Director - Operations agreed that there needed to be full engagement with 
the public. Officers worked hard to include all communities.  Information was given out in 
different languages and the refuse crew themselves included operatives who spoke 
different languages. Pictures were being used rather than words. Larger bins were part 
of the procurement and communal bins were used in East Lindsey. Fly tipping was 
happening regardless of the recycling schemes in place.  The issue of HMOs was on the 
list of matters to be addressed. Other local authorities would learn from Boston’s roll out. 
 
The Assistant Director - Operations thanked Members for their ideas, which would be 
considered. It was important that, for the scheme be a success, recycling needed to be 
as easy as possible for the public. Consistency of materials collected for recycling was a 
crucial point and they were working hard on producing more consistent messages 
across Lincolnshire. The Government was expecting consistency of material streams 
nationally and authorities now collected the same materials for recycling across 
Lincolnshire. 
 
76   CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENT UPDATE 

 
The Climate Change & Environment Manager presented a report, which detailed the 
progress made by the Council against the nine recommendations agreed by Full Council 
in January 2020 (Appendix A), attached a draft Environmental Policy for Members’ 
consideration (Appendix B) and set out the next steps to be taken.  
 
The Climate Change Working Group, established by the Committee, had submitted the 
nine recommendations to Full Council, but the Covid-19 pandemic had impacted 
progress and the necessary resources to take the work forward had only been identified 
recently.  The Climate Change & Environment Manager had been working with the 
Assistant Director - Regulation since August 2020.  
 

Page 3



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
5 January 2021 
 

The Strategic Alliance with East Lindsey District Council (ELDC) gave a renewed 
opportunity to pick up this work and to share knowledge and experience to help both 
authorities take action on the climate change agenda.   
 
The Council’s new Corporate Strategy for 2020-24 included a priority around 
environmental awareness and accountability.  This contained several commitments 
including developing a Carbon Reduction Plan and ensuring that every service and 
policy delivered on the Council’s climate change commitments. 
 
The Council was in the process of commissioning the Carbon Trust to produce a new 
Carbon Reduction Plan, which would also provide an updated baseline of the current 
carbon footprint. Work would begin on this in early 2021. The Carbon Trust had recently 
completed a similar exercise for ELDC and it was hoped there would be opportunities to 
align both plans and identify savings through joint projects. 
 
The nine recommendations demonstrated a clear intention to embed a culture of 
environmental consideration and carbon reduction across all areas of the Council.  To 
ensure this happened, the Environment Policy would set the framework under which 
relevant plans and strategies, such as the Carbon Reduction Plan, would sit. It was a 
simple mandate for climate change and environment action with four main themes that 
would ensure every service area was working to an agreed set of objectives consistent 
with the new corporate priority.   
 
It was also important that all Council staff had an awareness of the far-reaching 
implications of climate change, the multiple benefits that taking action could achieve and 
an understanding of where changes could be made. A Carbon Literacy training 
programme was in development to be rolled out to all staff and Members in 2021.   
 
The next step would be to produce a Climate Change Strategy for the Strategic Alliance 
as a whole, which would set the context for Boston and East Lindsey.  The Strategy 
would identify key sectors and stakeholders with which to engage and set out an action 
plan for ensuring the Council and ELDC worked collaboratively to reduce emissions and 
enhance the natural environment for residents, businesses and visitors. 
 
As Portfolio Holder, the Leader explained that the new Climate Change Strategy would 
be an important key consideration for the Council. Progress could not made alone; it 
would be crucial to draw on experience to benefit the whole area. 
 
Members welcomed and commended the report.  It was remarked that all individuals 
could play their part towards the carbon reduction, e.g. with respect to their choice of 
vehicles.   
 
There was recognition of the importance of climate change issues and delivery of 
carbon reduction within the planning process.  It would be useful for the South East 
Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Planning Committee (SELJSPC), which had not yet met 
since early 2020, to meet as soon as possible to discuss how to make progress on the 
themes of the environmental policy. 
 
There was concern about reference to significant financial resources in terms of not 
putting the Council in difficulties, as it was in a more challenging financial position than 
ELDC. 

Page 4



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
5 January 2021 

 

 
The Leader explained that the themes of the Environmental Policy would be delivered at 
the same time as delivering value for money and that many projects were being 
considered. 
 
A non-Committee Member who had served on the Climate Change Working Group was 
invited to address the Committee and expressed the view that the proposed measures 
to address the issues of climate change would also assist the Council, because when 
making energy savings, money was also saved, adding that it would be useful to see an 
estimate of cost savings and timescales. 
 
The Climate Change & Environment Manager explained that costs were unknown at 
present.  A significant amount of work would have to be carried out first, but they were 
examining the cost/benefit analysis of projects to ensure they were financially sound.   
They would be developed over time and considered on a case-by-case basis.  The 
Council had done quite a lot of work over the last few years towards this, but there was 
still a lot of unknown factors.  In addition, in the forthcoming years, new technology 
would come to the forefront and its effects were not yet known. 
 
A significant amount of money was coming from Government, e.g. the feasibility study of 
the Municipal Buildings had been completely funded through grants. Some costs would 
be covered by grant funding and some would be invest-to-save projects.  
 
The Chairman fully supported the policy and report, and expressed particular interest in 
eco-developments and felt work should be undertaken with developers as they were still 
building houses without consideration for climate change issues. 
 
The Climate Change & Environment Manager confirmed that this was being given 
consideration, but it would take time. They were considering establishing a reference 
group with agents and developers to work with them to understand the issues. Although 
it would reduce viability of developments, these matters had to be addressed. ELDC’s 
local plan was being reviewed currently and they could run through the viability 
assessments to ensure they were robust. However, progress would be slow. 
 
In conclusion, the Assistant Director - Regulation expressed his appreciation to the 
Climate Change & Environment Manager for the quick progress achieved since her 
arrival and her professional input, and also thanked the Portfolio Holder. The Climate 
Change Working Group had given the Council a clear mandate, but the pandemic had 
intervened. The report set out progress made and the roadmap of how it would be 
delivered in future. Members were thanked for their support. 
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The progress already achieved in delivering the nine recommendations 

approved by Full Council in January 2020 is recognised and the next steps as 
outlined in the report are supported.  

 
2. Cabinet be recommended to adopt the Environment Policy. 
 

Page 5



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
5 January 2021 
 

 
77   WORK PROGRAMME TO INCLUDE QUARTER 2 PERFORMANCE DATA 

 
Members considered the Committee’s work programme for the remainder of the year 
along with performance monitoring information for 1 July – 30 September 2020 in 
relation to the priorities within the Committee’s remit.   
 
The Transformation & Governance Manager advised the Committee of the positive 
progress made in many areas despite the difficult circumstances. There were some 
challenges and the report set out how these were being addressed. 
 
In response to questions, it was confirmed that the low percentage of net business rates 
collected had been the result of the impact of COVID reliefs. 
 
Members gave further consideration to fly tipping, which they felt was a significant issue. 
They asked that the fly tipping teams be congratulated and thanked for their hard work, 
particularly due to the increase in the last few months. However, despite their 
tremendous work, it had still not been possible to reduce the amount of fly tipping, 
especially in the summer months. It was appalling and resulted in a significant number 
of complaints. One view was that there was a link between incidents of fly tipping 
incidents and the tip, which should be more accessible to make it easier to use to get rid 
of waste.  It was felt that Members should meet urgently to rethink the issues and 
explore possible solutions.   
 
In agreement, the Portfolio Holder asserted that they should all work together to help 
clean up the town and all areas of the borough. The non-Committee Member in 
attendance asked if a working group should be set up. 
 
The Leader agreed and confirmed that they were checking fly tips in order to identify 
those responsible in order to prosecute them.  
 
A Member expressed satisfaction at the increase in fines and stressed the importance of 
raising awareness of how matters were pursued, suggesting that details of fines and 
prosecutions should be published prominently. 
 
The Transformation & Governance Manager confirmed that the figures in the report 
were affected by the timing of the end of the quarter in that some had not yet had time to 
be paid. A table would be contained in the next quarter’s report with full and clear data. 
 
The Assistant Director - Regulation confirmed these issues would be discussed with the 
Assistant Director - Operations with a view to holding a meeting to explore ideas along 
with the Operations Manager, though they needed to be conscious of the timing with 
respect to work on the twin stream recycling scheme. 
 
It was agreed to form a Working Group for Members to explore solutions to the 
problems of fly tipping, with names to be forwarded to the clerk. 
 

Action: JC 
Advise all Members of the Committee that a Working Group is to meet to explore fly 
tipping solutions and forward names of those interested to Madam Chairman.  

 

Page 6



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
5 January 2021 

 

The Assistant Director - Regulation then updated the Committee as follows. 
 
1. The opening hours of the Waste Recycling Centre in Boston had been circulated to 

Members. 

2. The Operations Manager had raised Members’ concerns in respect of dog 

kidnapping with Boston‘s Inspector Fran Harrod who had reported that the police had 

not seen an increase in reports of such incidents. 

3. With respect to the installation of CCTV at recognised fly-tipping hotspots across the 

borough, the Council had entered into a contract for overt surveillance CCTV. A 

camera placed by Asda had made 175 observations within two weeks and the 

quarterly reports would reflect this information in due course.  They were considering 

the matter with colleagues to develop this. 

4. A report on the provision of public conveniences, both local authority facilities and 

privately owned facilities available for public use, would be added to the work 

programme. 

5. Regarding reports of street lights out within the town centre, down West Street and 

through Wide Bargate, the County Council had provided an update.  They had met 

on site with the contractor to carry out repairs and the LED upgrade kit manufacturer 

was looking at a permanent repair / replacement strategy.  All lights were currently 

working. 

 
The next meeting on 23 February would be a single item agenda. 
 
 
77   WORK PROGRAMME TO INCLUDE QUARTER 2 PERFORMANCE DATA 

 
Members considered the Committee’s work programme for the remainder of the year 
along with performance monitoring information for 1 July – 30 September 2020 in 
relation to the priorities within the Committee’s remit.   
 
The Transformation & Governance Manager advised the Committee of the positive 
progress made in many areas despite the difficult circumstances. There were some 
challenges and the report set out how these were being addressed. 
 
In response to questions, it was confirmed that the low percentage of net business rates 
collected had been the result of the impact of COVID reliefs. 
 
Members gave further consideration to fly tipping, which they felt was a significant issue. 
They asked that the fly tipping teams be congratulated and thanked for their hard work, 
particularly due to the increase in the last few months. However, despite their 
tremendous work, it had still not been possible to reduce the amount of fly tipping, 
especially in the summer months. It was appalling and resulted in a significant number 
of complaints. One view was that there was a link between incidents of fly tipping 
incidents and the tip, which should be more accessible to make it easier to use to get rid 
of waste.  It was felt that Members should meet urgently to rethink the issues and 
explore possible solutions.   
 

Page 7



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
5 January 2021 
 

In agreement, the Portfolio Holder asserted that they should all work together to help 
clean up the town and all areas of the borough. The non-Committee Member in 
attendance asked if a working group should be set up. 
 
The Leader agreed and confirmed that they were checking fly tips in order to identify 
those responsible in order to prosecute them.  
 
A Member expressed satisfaction at the increase in fines and stressed the importance of 
raising awareness of how matters were pursued, suggesting that details of fines and 
prosecutions should be published prominently. 
 
The Transformation & Governance Manager confirmed that the figures in the report 
were affected by the timing of the end of the quarter in that some had not yet had time to 
be paid. A table would be contained in the next quarter’s report with full and clear data. 
 
The Assistant Director - Regulation confirmed these issues would be discussed with the 
Assistant Director - Operations with a view to holding a meeting to explore ideas along 
with the Operations Manager, though they needed to be conscious of the timing with 
respect to work on the twin stream recycling scheme. 
 
It was agreed to form a Working Group for Members to explore solutions to the 
problems of fly tipping, with names to be forwarded to the clerk. 
 

Action: JC 
Advise all Members of the Committee that a Working Group is to meet to explore fly 
tipping solutions and forward names of those interested to Madam Chairman.  

 
The Assistant Director - Regulation then updated the Committee as follows. 
 
1. The opening hours of the Waste Recycling Centre in Boston had been circulated to 

Members. 

2. The Operations Manager had raised Members’ concerns in respect of dog 

kidnapping with Boston‘s Inspector Fran Harrod who had reported that the police had 

not seen an increase in reports of such incidents. 

3. With respect to the installation of CCTV at recognised fly-tipping hotspots across the 

borough, the Council had entered into a contract for overt surveillance CCTV. A 

camera placed by Asda had made 175 observations within two weeks and the 

quarterly reports would reflect this information in due course.  They were considering 

the matter with colleagues to develop this. 

4. A report on the provision of public conveniences, both local authority facilities and 

privately owned facilities available for public use, would be added to the work 

programme. 

5. Regarding reports of street lights out within the town centre, down West Street and 

through Wide Bargate, the County Council had provided an update.  They had met 

on site with the contractor to carry out repairs and the LED upgrade kit manufacturer 

was looking at a permanent repair / replacement strategy.  All lights were currently 

working. 

 
The next meeting on 23 February would be a single item agenda. 

Page 8



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
5 January 2021 

 

 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 9.10 pm 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: ENVIRONMENT AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: APRIL 27, 2021 

SUBJECT: MEMBER LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY - 2021 to 2024 

KEY DECISION: 

  

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

NO 

 

COUNCILLOR PAUL SKINNER, LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: 

JAMES GILBERT, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR – ORGANISATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES 

NO 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

The Council previously had a Member Learning and Development Strategy, however, this has now expired. 

The draft Strategy at Appendix A updates the Council’s previous strategy and formalises the Council’s commitment to 

Member Learning and Development. 

The draft Strategy has been agreed by the Councillor Development Group and is for Cabinet consideration on June 

23, 2021. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

- That Environment and Performance Scrutiny Committee is asked to provide feedback to shape the draft 

Strategy’s development. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

The draft Strategy provides a framework to guide learning and development for Members and having an effective 

Strategy in place is a requirement of the Local Government Association in enabling reaccreditation for the Councillor 

Development Charter.    The Strategy will support Councillors to perform effectively in their roles and to develop to 

meet future challenges. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

None 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 1



 

REPORT 

 

1. The draft Learning and Development Strategy at Appendix A provides a framework within which to deliver 

learning and development activities for Boston Borough Councillors and updates the previous Strategy, which 

has now expired. 

 

2. The Strategy document, which was supported by the Councillor Development Group on March 10, 2021, sets 

out the Council’s commitment to Member development, as well as roles and responsibilities and how 

development undertaken will be evaluated. 

 

3. As well as being an important document to guide Member development, in 2022 the Council will be seeking 

reaccreditation for the Local Government Association’s Councillor Development Charter and having an up to 

date Strategy in place is a requirement of that process. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Strategy itself doesn’t come with a resource requirement.  The Council has a dedicated Learning and 
Development Budget for Councillors of £8k that is allocated via the Councillor Development Group. 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

None 

 

CONSULTATION 

The draft Strategy was considered and supported by the Councillor Development Group on March 10, 2021. 

 

 

Page 12



 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Member Learning and Development Strategy 2021 - 2024 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

Councillor Development Group considered the 

Strategy (not this report) 

March 10, 2021 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: James Gilbert, Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate 

Services 

Signed off by: Alison Penn, Deputy Chief Executive (People) 

Approved for publication: Alison Penn, Deputy Chief Executive (People) 

 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



  1 

 
Appendix A 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Member Learning and Development Strategy  
2021 to 2024 

 

Page 15



  2 

 
Appendix A 

 

Appendices 
 

Appendix  Document Title 

A Member Learning & Development Evaluation Policy  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



  3 

 
Appendix A 

 

Introduction 
 
This Member Learning and Development Strategy is fully endorsed by the cross party Councillor 
Development Group.  
 
Local government is the subject of frequent change and councils have new and varied responsibilities 
and functions from time to time. The learning and development needs of Members will vary and be 
required to be assessed in the light of changed roles and responsibilities.  
 
Members are integral to achieving our aims and strategic objectives and to the delivery of high-quality 
services. We are working to support the development  of all Members to enable them to perform 
effectively in their roles and to develop to meet future challenges. 
 
The purpose of this strategy is to set out our approach to helping our Members develop their own 
performance and contribution to lead the community of Boston.  
 
We are committed to ensuring that: 
 

 All Members have access to appropriate learning and development activities to enable them to 
acquire the knowledge and skills required to be effective in their role. 

 

 A planned and structured approach to Member learning and development needs is taken. 
 

 Access to learning and development activities is equitable. 
 

 Learning and development is linked to the Council’s priorities. 
 

 Learning and development, wherever possible, is linked to Members’ specific roles. 
 

 Member learning and development activities are adequately resourced and within available 
budgets. 

 

 Learning and development activities are evaluated to assess the impacts. 
 
Members are encouraged to identify their own development needs and participate fully in learning and 
development activities. 
 
An agreed member Learning and Development Programme will be produced each year based on 
feedback from Members; the requirements of the Council and in recognition of the changing local 
government landscape. This Programme will be linked to the Council’s corporate priorities, the roles and 
function of Members and the key changes affecting the Council’s priorities and services. 
 

Page 17



  4 

 
Appendix A 

 

East Midlands Regional Councillor Development Charter  
 
Standards set out in the East Midlands Regional Development Charter aim to promote best practice in 
Member development and can be seen as a vehicle to improve the corporate performance of a Local 
Authority through the development of its Members. The Council was accredited to the Charter in 
December 2012 and successfully re-assessed in March 2016.  The Council will be seeking reaccreditation 
in 2022 as its accreditation expired in early 2020. 
 
Roles and responsibilities in Member learning and development 
 
In addition to input from Group Leaders, a cross-party Councillor Development Group was set up in 2010 
to champion Member development. The Democratic Services and People Services teams provide support 
and assistance to the Group. 
 
The role of political leaders 
 
The role of political leaders is to pledge commitment to learning and development  for Members from all 
political parties and to support the delivery of the Member Learning  and Development Strategy. 
 
The role of the Councillor Development Group is  to:- 
 

 Assist in the development and monitoring of this strategy. 
 

 Approve and monitor the delivery of the Members’ Learning and Development Programme. 
 

 Create an environment that encourages self-development and continuous learning and the 
sharing of knowledge and skills amongst the members in their ‘political’ groups. 

 

 Consider requests for learning and development and direct priorities for learning and 
development. 

 

 Review the effectiveness of Member learning and development. 
 

 Monitor the Member learning and development budget.  
 
The role of individual members 
 
Members are responsible for: 
 

 Identifying their learning and development needs, supported by Group Leaders where 
appropriate. 

 

 Seeking opportunities to improve their effectiveness and increase their potential. 
 

 Attending arranged learning and development activities. 
 

 Sharing their knowledge and skills with their peers. 
 

 Reviewing their learning and development activities. 
 

Page 18



  5 

 
Appendix A 

 

 Applying the knowledge and skills developed through learning and development activities. 
 
The role of services 
 
Services are responsible for: 
 

 Identifying service specific learning and development areas. 
 

Member Learning and Development Programme 
 
To ensure that the maximum is achieved for the investment, learning activity needs to be planned.  
 
The purpose of the Programme is to: 
 

 Establish clear priorities for learning and development linked to the Council’s corporate priorities 
and the changing landscape in which local government operates. 

 

 Enable identified needs to be prioritised and linked to the Council’s corporate priorities. 
 

 Identify resources required to deliver the plan and any resource gaps. 
 

 To ensure equity. 
 

 Ensure the best use is made from learning and development budgets and other resources. 
 
Delivery of learning and development activities 
 
A flexible approach to the delivery of learning and development will be adopted  to make use of the 
different development methods available and to meet the needs of Members. 
 
Methods used will include the following but this list is not exhaustive: 
 

 Officer mentoring 

 Councillor mentoring 

 E-learning 

 Facilitated presentations 

 Facilitated workshops 

 Member briefings  
 
Where appropriate shared Member and Officer development activities, as well as joint learning events 
with other local authorities, will be encouraged. 
 
Access to learning and development opportunities 
 

 All Members will have the opportunity to benefit from learning and development opportunities. 
 

 All Members will have equal access to information relating to learning and development 
opportunities. 

 

 All Members will have equal access to participation in learning and development opportunities, 

Page 19



  6 

 
Appendix A 

 

subject to their personal needs, taking into account those with work or family commitments and 
the needs of their roles and responsibilities throughout their office on the Council. 

 
Monitoring and evaluation 
 
Evaluation will establish the effectiveness of learning and development activities. The role of Members 
in the evaluation of learning and development is critical to the continuous improvement of learning 
events.  
  
The Councillor Development Group is committed to increasing the take up of those who provide 
feedback as this will provide better data to determine the value and benefit of learning and 
development opportunities.  
 
Evaluating what has taken place can assess the extent to which training has benefited Members, the 
organisation and the community.  
 
Appendix A sets out the Evaluation Policy. 
 
Resources to support elected member learning and development  
 
Member learning and development is resourced from the allocated Member development budget. This 
budget will be prioritised to cover the most pressing needs linked to the member Learning and 
Development Programme and corporate learning and development needs.  The budget is £8,000. 
 
Learning and development records 
 
It is the responsibility of PSPS HR to maintain Member learning and development records. Learning will 
be evaluated to inform future plans and budgets. 
 
Implementing the strategy 
 
This strategy is intended to be a common framework for the provision of all Member learning and 
development. 
 
Review of the strategy 
 
This strategy will be reviewed regularly to ensure that it meets the needs of the organisation and its 
Members. 
 
 
 
  

Page 20



  7 

 
Appendix A 

 

Appendix A 
 
Member Learning and Development Evaluation Policy 
 
Introduction 
 
We are committed to carrying out evaluation of learning and development opportunities to ensure that 
we are meeting the needs of the individual, the organisation and achieving value for money.  
 
This policy is inextricably linked to the Member Learning and Development Strategy and will help 
support the Council’s aim to achieve the East Midlands Councillor Development Charter once again.  
 
Evaluation will help to: 
 

 provide the value of a Learning and Development Programme. 

 measure the effect of learning and development activities. 

 ensure that individuals have met their stated needs. 

 show links between learning and development and achieving the corporate aims. 

Prior to a learning and development event 
 
Clear and measurable objectives for the activity should be set: 
 

 individually by those attending the learning and development event. 

 by the course designer – who will identify what the activity is aiming to achieve. 

 corporately – what area(s) of the corporate aims and objectives the activity is designed to 
support. 

 
How we will gather feedback.  
 
There are a variety of methods which can be used to evaluate activities that have been delivered. 
Evaluation can be determined prior to any activity taking place as some forms of evaluation will be to 
measure a change and therefore there will be a need to measure the behaviour or knowledge level 
before the activity takes place.   
 
Examples of methods of evaluation: 
 

 feedback from course facilitator  

 pre and post course questionnaires 

 case studies  

 longer term evaluation  

 input from senior officers or members 

Feedback from delegates will be requested immediately after the delivery of learning and development 
activities to gauge ‘on the day’ responses.  
 
In the case of more significant events i.e. induction or where a specific piece of training has targeted a 
particular need post training evaluation questionnaires will be circulated within three months of 
attendance at the event to capture information on any changes they have been able to make as a direct 
result of the training or any other gaps in their knowledge that they have been able to identify.   
 

Page 21



  8 

 
Appendix A 

 

Information gathered from evaluation feedback will be reported to the Councillor Development Group 
to support future training provision and to make any necessary adjustments to future activities.  
 
Value for money 
 
Value for money will be determined for each course delivered through consideration of Member 
feedback and cost per head. 
 
Delivery of this policy 
 
This policy will be delivered through the Councillor Development Group with ongoing support of the 
PSPS HR and Democratic Services teams. Evaluation of learning and development activities is a standing 
agenda item at meetings of the Group and as such they will be asked to evaluate progress against the 
Member Development Programme on a regular basis.  
 
 

Page 22



 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

REPORT TO: ENVIRONMENT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 27 April 2021 

SUBJECT: 

KEY DECISION: 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

Work Programme inc. Q3 Performance 

No 

N/A 

REPORT AUTHOR: Madam Chairman Councillor Judith Skinner 

WARDS AFFECTED: All 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 

The work programme is a standing item at all meetings and as agreed by committee, the 
performance monitoring be provided each quarter to support committee’s consideration of 
possible future reporting.  
 

As the Committee is fully aware, one of its core functions is scrutinising the Council’s 
performance in relation to Corporate Priority 1 – Prosperity and Corporate Priority 3 – 
Place.   
 
Quarter 3 performance information is now available for these two priorities and is set out 
at appendix A of this report and will be presented by the IT and Transformation Manager. 
 
Following committees questioning in respect of the performance reporting, members 
should then consider the updated work programme at appendix B of the report, with a 
view to scheduling reports for forthcoming meetings. 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That Committee members asked to review the performance data attached at Appendix 1 
and consider if any future scrutiny is necessary on any subject identified.   All members may 
request a report on any subject matter pertinent to this committee’s remit directly to the 
Chairman or the clerk.  
 

 

 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 2



 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Given that the remit of this Committee is the scrutiny of Corporate Priorities CP1 - 
Prosperity and CP3 - Place, regularly reviewing performance in these areas and deciding 
whether it leads to the need for further scrutiny demonstrates robust and proper 
governance.   
 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 

Not to consider the performance reporting.  Not to schedule reporting onto the work 
programme. 
 
 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
There are no financial implications associated with this scrutiny report. 
 
 

 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
There are no legal implications associated with this scrutiny report. 
 
 
 

 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
No other implications associated with this scrutiny report have been identified. 

 

 
 

CONSULTATION 
Corporate Management Team  
 

APPENDICES 
 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A 2020/21 Quarter 3 Performance Data for Corporate 
Priorities CP1 - Prosperity and CP3 – Place. 

APPENDIX B Work Programme 

APPENDIX C Forward Plan 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were 
used in the production of this report 
 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

No other Council Committee has yet considered the performance information appended to 
this report.    
 

 
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Performance Q3 2020/21 – Environment & Performance Summary                               APPENDIX   A  
 
Performance measures: directly within the Council’s control; used to monitor how our services are 
performing against set targets 
 
Trend measures: provide context and not directly within the Council’s control; used to inform decision 
making and policy. 
 
Key to abbreviations: 
Performance: : Performance better than target; : Performance on target; : Performance worse than 
target 
 

Assistant Director lead: AF: Andy Fisher, Assets; CA: Christian Allen – Regulation; JG: James Gilbert – 
Organisation & Corporate Services; LR: Lydia Rusling – Towns Fund; MG: Mike Gildersleeves – Planning; 
MH: Michelle Howard – Housing and Wellbeing; NC: Neil Cucksey – Economic Growth; PP: Phil Perry – 
Support Services & Partnerships; VB: Victoria Burgess – Operations  
 
Portfolio: JN: Jonathan Noble, Finance & Commercial; MG: Martin Griggs, Housing and Communities; NW: 
Nigel Welton, Deputy Leader – Economic Development and Planning; PS: Paul Skinner, Leader; RA: Richard 
Austin, Heritage; TA: Tracey Abbott, Town Centre; YS: Yvonne Stevens, Environmental Services 
 

 
Corporate Priority 1: Prosperity 
 

Performance measures 

C
M

T 
le

ad
 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Sc
ru

ti
n

y 

2019/20 
(full year) 

2020/21 
(Q3) 

A
ct

u
al

 

Ta
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce
 

A
ct

u
al

 

Ta
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce
 

% of major planning applications 
determined on time* 

MG NW 1 EP 91% 75%  91% 75%  

% minor planning applications 
determined on time* 

MG NW 1 EP 83% 65%  86% 65%  

% of all other applications determined 
on time* 

MG NW 1 EP 89% 80%  89% 80%  

% of major appeals allowed against 
the number of major applications 
determined by the authority within 
the previous 2 years 

MG NW 1 EP 2.78% 10%  0% 10%  

% of minor and other appeals allowed 
against the number of minor and 
other applications determined by the 
authority within the previous 2 years 

MG NW 1 EP 1.32% 20%  1.30% 20%  

Comment: The Government measure planning performance over a 2 year period. The performance figures 
above show Boston’s overall performance over the last 2 years against target and the graphs over the page 
show the trend by quarter. 

                                                
* ‘On time’ – within statutory target determination period or such extended period as agreed in writing with the 
applicant/agent 

Page 27



 

 

Performance measures 

C
M

T 
le

ad
 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Sc
ru

ti
n

y 

2019/20 
(full year) 

2020/21 
(Q3) 

A
ct

u
al

 

Ta
rg

et
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

A
ct

u
al

 

Ta
rg

et
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

Number of businesses visited to 
support business growth 

NC NW 1 EP 79 50  58 37  

Number of initiatives to support skills, 
in partnership with the business 
community 

NC NW 1 EP 11 10  9 7  

Number of business events attended 
to promote the Borough 

NC NW 1 EP 8 4  5 3  

 
CP1: trend measures 
 

 
 

 

18/19: Q4 19/20: Q1 19/20: Q2 19/20: Q3 19/20: Q4 20/21: Q1 20/21: Q2 20/21: Q3

Major 78% 75% 89% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Target 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Major planning applications determined on time

Page 28



 

 

 
 

 
 
Income from planning applications in Q3 was £147,824. 
 
Income continues to be below target - approximately 30% down year to date. Only 1 or 2 significant sized 
applications away from meeting target.  Overall volume of applications is only marginally lower than 
equivalent period in 2019. Likely linked to effect of Covid-19. 
 
35 planning applications were determined with time extensions in Q3 (34% of applications determined in 
the quarter). 
 

18/19: Q4 19/20: Q1 19/20: Q2 19/20: Q3 19/20: Q4 20/21: Q1 20/21: Q2 20/21: Q3

Minor 83% 89% 88% 76% 81% 85% 93% 95%

Target 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Minor planning applications determined on time

18/19: Q4 19/20: Q1 19/20: Q2 19/20: Q3 19/20: Q4 20/21: Q1 20/21: Q2 20/21: Q3

Other 74% 85% 93% 96% 80% 97% 90% 95%

Target 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Other planning applications determined on time

Page 29



 

 

 
 

Collectable debit less than previous years due to reliefs awarded to support businesses in 2020/21 
following Covid-19 outbreak. 
 

Every non-domestic property has a rateable value (RV) which is determined by the Valuation Office Agency 
(VOA). The RV is broadly representative of the amount for which the premises could be let per annum. 
 

The council multiplies the RV of an individual property, by a 'multiplier' (the national non-domestic 
multiplier) set by central government. It is set for the whole of England and is effective from the 1 April 
each year. 
 

This gives the gross rates payable for each property before any entitlement to reliefs, exemptions or 
discounts are applied. 
 

Depending on the individual circumstances of the ratepayer, there are a range of reliefs, discounts and 
exemptions that they may be entitled to in order to lower the amount of business rates payable. After 
these reliefs have been applied to a business rates account, the amount payable is referred to as the net 
rates payable. 
 

Both the amount of gross and net rates payable fluctuate on a daily basis. Some examples that are likely to 
change the amount of gross and/or net rates payable are shown below: - 

 Increases and decreases to the RV of a property 

 New properties entering the rating list 

 Properties being deleted from the rating list 

 Changes to the structure of a property (merges/splits) 

 Entitlement to discounts, reliefs and exemptions being applied to accounts 

 Entitlement to discounts, reliefs and exemptions being removed from accounts 
 

More detailed information can be found on our website  
https://www.mybostonuk.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/Business-rates-2020-21.pdf 

 
  

 -

 5.000

 10.000

 15.000

 20.000

 25.000

 30.000

17/18
: Q4

18/19
: Q1

18/19
: Q2

18/19
: Q3

18/19
: Q4

19/20
: Q1

19/20
: Q2

19/20
: Q3

19/20
: Q4

20/21
: Q1

20/21
: Q2

20/21
: Q3

Gross (£m) 24.26 25.53 25.36 25.45 25.40 26.54 26.37 26.31 26.33 27.26 26.55 26.40

Net (£m) 19.73 20.63 20.30 20.31 20.24 20.71 20.28 20.07 19.90 11.58 10.65 10.35

Collectable business rates

Page 30

https://www.mybostonuk.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/Business-rates-2020-21.pdf


 

 

Corporate Priority 3: Place 
 

Performance measures 

C
M

T 
le

ad
 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Sc
ru

ti
n

y 

2019/20 (full year) 2020/21 (Q3) 

A
ct

u
al

 

Ta
rg

et
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

A
ct

u
al

 

Ta
rg

et
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

Car parking income 
against monthly profile* 

AF JN 3 EP £885,940 £860,000  £164,384 £675,230  

Car Parking permit 
income vs budget 

AF JN 3 EP £99,744 £89,950  £31,524 £51,960  

Comment: 2.5 hours free shopper parking has been available throughout Q3 with COVID restrictions 
significantly affecting the use of our car parks. 

Household waste 
reused, recycled, 
composted 

VB YS 3 EP 41.01% 41.52%  41.98% 43.70%  

Residual household 
waste per household 

VB YS 3 EP 569kg 553kg  457kg 420kg  

% of fly tip reports 
responded to within 3 
working days 

VB YS 3 EP 69.30% 88%  96% 88%  

Market Income NC TA 3 EP £117,806 £160,000  £39,697 £97,500  
Comment: We returned to normal in October and then ended up back with further trading restrictions in 
November. December saw full market return but only at half price rent. 

 
CP3: trend measures 
 

Trend measures 
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 

Number of Stage 1 
Antisocial Behaviour 
(ASB) letters 

14 11 21 26 19 15 22 25 13 9 31 8 1 23 32 

Number of Stage 2 
Antisocial Behaviour 
(ASB) letters 

7 7 5 7 3 6 1 6 5 5 23 47 2 4 5 

Number of Acceptable 
Behaviour Agreements 
(ABAs) 

1 5 6 0 1 0 0 0 6 0 7 3 0 0 2 

Number of Civil 
Injunctions secured 

0 1 1 1 3 0 0 0 0 6 2 0 0 0 0 

Number of Community 
Protection Notice 
Warnings issued 

0 0 0 0 0 5 1 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 

Number of Community 
Protection Notices 
(CPNs) 

1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 

                                                
* This includes income from tickets purchased via the MiPermit app 

Page 31



 

 

Trend measures 
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 

Number of Criminal 
Behaviour Orders issued 
(CBOs) 

New measure 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 

 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Q3 152 102 153 89 74 50 72 27

Q2 109 128 170 61 129 73 53 32

Q1 154 106 114 98 73 70 57 32

154
106 114 98

73 70 57
32

109

128
170

61 129

73
53

32

152

102

153

89

74

50
72

27

Number of CCTV directed/assisted arrests

0

50

100

150

200

250

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Q3 73 63 81 55 53 43 42 20

Q2 50 75 98 49 52 51 47 35

Q1 43 52 70 70 60 51 59 26

43 52
70 70 60 51 59

26

50

75

98

49
52

51 47

35

73

63

81

55
53

43 42

20

Number of CCTV evidential packages

Page 32



 

 

 

 
 
 
Guildhall 
 
Due to Covid-19 the Guildhall was closed throughout the duration of Quarter 3. 
 
The Guildhall has received its mystery shopper Visitor Attraction Quality Assurance Scheme (VAQAS) 
assessment by Visit England and not only passed but improved its score from last year with positive 
comments on the prebooking system we had put in place, access arrangements and staffing. 

 
 
Commercial waste: 

 

Trend measures 2020/21 

% growth in income in commercial waste service compared to previous year +6% 

% growth in number of commercial waste customers compared to previous year +28% 

 
  

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Q3 294 405 362 261 217 130 209 101

Q2 220 449 418 234 323 164 174 101

Q1 354 228 324 215 287 184 138 175

354
228

324
215

287
184 138 175

220 449

418

234

323

164
174 101

294

405
362

261

217

130 209

101

Number of CCTV incidents recorded

Page 33



 

 

Fly tipping: 
 

 
 
 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar
20

Apr 20 May
20

Jun 20 Jul 20 Aug
20

Sep 20 Oct 20 Nov
20

Dec
20

Number 149 111 172 193 180 264 257 225 268 253 269 202

Number of fly tip incidents (by month)

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Fly tip incidents by type

19/20: Q3 20/21: Q3

Page 34



 

 

 
 
This does not correspond exactly to the number of ‘other household’ items overall because there may be 
multiple types of items in one ‘other household’ incident. 
 

 
 
 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Furniture Textiles Wood Garden Toys Mattresses

19/20: Q3 52 16 7 3 10 47

20/21: Q3 146 57 80 22 70 104

'Other household' items

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Single Item Car Boot Small Van Transit Van Tipper Significant

19/20: Q3 22 42 119 67 11 1

20/21: Q3 73 104 307 158 52 4

Fly tip incidents by volume

Page 35



 

 

 
 
The set working days for collection changed from 2 to 3 in September 2020. 
 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

Same day as reported Within set working
days

Over set working days

19/20: Q3 9.29% 61.71% 38.29%

20/21: Q3 46.76% 95.72% 4.28%

Collection of fly tips

Page 36



 

 
 

 

Environment and Performance Committee Work Programme 2020–22 
 

THIS COMMITTEE’S REMIT IS ALIGNED TO COPORATE PRIORITIES:   CP1 PROSPERITY   and   CP3 PLACE 
 

MEETING 
DATE 

AGENDA ITEMS REPORT AUTHOR PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER 

CABINET 

14.07.20 
 

1. Annual CCTV update 
2. Annual ASB update 
3. Work Programme and Quarter 4 Performance. 

(Followed by an update by the Chairman on the Task and 
Finish Group review)  

Head of Regulatory Services 
Head of Regulatory Services 

Standing Item 

Cllr P Skinner 
Cllr P Skinner 

 
 

 
 

03.09.20 1. BAEF Consultation Presentation by Mr Bower Cllr Y Stevens 09.09.2020 

03.11.20 
 

1. Quarter 1 Performance / Work Programme 
2. Task and Finish Group Report  
3. Draft Annual Scrutiny Report  

Standing Item 
Assistant Director – Assets 

Lead Officer to present 

Cllr P Skinner 
 

02.12.2020 

05.01.21 
 

1. Kerbside Twin Stream Recycling initiative* 
2. Progress report on the 9 Climate Change 

recommendations approved by Full Council in January 
2020 and scrutiny of a draft Environment Policy 

3. Quarter 2 Performance /  Work Programme 

Assistant Director - Operations 
Assistant Director - Regulation 

 
 

Standing Item 

Cllr Y Stevens 
Cllr P Skinner 

27.01.2021 

23.02.21 Cancelled due to lack of substantive business  - - - 

27.04.21 
 

1. Member Learning and Development Strategy - 2021 to 
2024 

2. Quarter 3 Performance / Work Programme 
3. Task & Finish Group Recommendations First Review 
4. Verbal update on MWG – Fly Tipping 

 

Assistant Director – Organisation 
and Corporate Services 
Standing Item Chairman 

Assistant Director – Regulation 
Cllr J Welbourn 

Cllr P Skinner 
 
“ 
“ 

12.05.2021 

22.06.21* 
 
 
 

1. Public Convenience provision in Boston.  
2. Recovery Plan – update   tbc 
3. Quarter 4 Performance / Work Programme 

Assistant Director – Operations 
 

Cllr Y Stevens 23.06.21 

P
age 37



 

 
 

 

07.09.21* 
 

 
1. Annual CCTV update  -  tbc 
2. Annual ASB update   -   tbc 

 

 
Assistant Director - Regulation 
Assistant Director - Regulation 

 

 
Cllr P Skinner 

 

 
08.09.21 

 
26.10.21* 
 

    
17.11.21 

 
07.12.21* 
 

    
19.01.22 

 
01.02.22* 
 

    
09.02.22 

 
22.03.22* 
 

    
30.03.22 

 
10.05.22* 
 

    
11.05.22 

 
 

OPTIONS FOR SCRUTINY WORKING - current at issue of agenda 
 

 

Task and Finish Group Review 
 

None scheduled at time of agenda publication 
 

  

 

Member Working Group 
 

Fly-Tipping Working Group – verbal update at meeting 27 April 2021 
 

  

 

Inquiry Session 
 

None scheduled at time of agenda publication  
 

  

 

All Member Briefings 
 

None scheduled at time of agenda publication  
 

NB:  *All meeting dates as from and including 22 June 2021 subject to agreement at Full Council. 

P
age 38



BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL  

FORWARD PLAN 

1 APRIL 2021 TO 31 MARCH 2022 

The Forward Plan is a forecast of decisions which are expected to be taken by the Cabinet in the next twelve months. 
 
This Plan constitutes 28 day notice as required by virtue of Regulations 5(2) and 9(2) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information (England) Regulations 2012.  
 
The Boston Borough Council definition of a key decision is: 

 A decision which results in the authority incurring expenditure which is, or involves the making of savings which are significant having 

regard to the authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or 

 Be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards of the Borough. 

Decisions set out in this Plan will be taken by the Cabinet unless otherwise specified.  All decisions included in this Plan will be taken on the 
basis of a written report and will be published on the Council’s website before the meeting. 
 
Please note that the decision dates are indicative and occasionally subject to change.  
 
The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which decisions will be discussed and the papers listed on the 
Plan can be viewed free of charge at the Customer Services Desk, Municipal Building, West Street, Boston, or on the Council’s website, 
www.mybostonuk.com 
 
If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the decisions outlined in the Plan, please submit them in writing to the contact 
officer identified against each decision in the Plan, at least 2 working days before the date of the meeting at which the decision is to be taken. 
 
Agendas, decisions and minutes are published on the Council’s website www.mybostonuk.com 
 
Cabinet Members:  
 
Cllr Paul Skinner (Leader)    Cllr Tracey Abbott  Cllr Martin Griggs  Cllr Yvonne Stevens 
Cllr Nigel Welton (Deputy Leader)  Cllr Richard Austin  Cllr Jonathan Noble  

 

P
age 39

http://www.mybostonuk.com/
http://www.mybostonuk.com/


 

Report Title Key / 
Non-Key 

Date Decision 
to be taken 

Rec to 
Council? 

Open or 
Exempt 

Lead Officer Portfolio Holder 

Housing Allocations Policy and 
Housing Register Changes 
 

Key 12 May 2021 
 

No Open 
 

Michelle Howard, 
Assistant Director - 
Housing & 
Wellbeing Tel: 
01507 613216 
michelle.howard@
e-lindsey.gov.uk 
 

Cllr Griggs, Housing & 
Communities 

Councillor Grant Scheme - 
Empowering Healthy Communities 
Programme 
 

Key 12 May 2021 
 

No Open 
 

Michelle Howard, 
Assistant Director - 
Housing & 
Wellbeing Tel: 
01507 613216 
michelle.howard@
e-lindsey.gov.uk 
 

Cllr Griggs, Housing & 
Communities 

Review of Policy and Procedures 
on the Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 
 

Key 23 Jun 2021 
 

No Open 
 

Christian Allen, 
Assistant Director - 
Regulation Tel: 
01205 314350 
christian.allen@bo
ston.gov.uk 
 

Councillor Paul Skinner 

Member Learning and 
Development Strategy 
 

Key 23 Jun 2021 
 

No Open 
 

James Gilbert, 
Assistant Director 
– Organisation and 
Corporate 
Services Tel: 
07799 473035 
james.gilbert@e-
lindsey.gov.uk 
 

Councillor Paul Skinner 

P
age 40



Report Title Key / 
Non-Key 

Date Decision 
to be taken 

Rec to 
Council? 

Open or 
Exempt 

Lead Officer Portfolio Holder 

Consideration of upgrading Case 
Management System 
 

Key 23 Jun 2021 
 

No Open 
 

James Gilbert, 
Assistant Director 
– Organisation and 
Corporate 
Services Tel: 
07799 473035 
james.gilbert@e-
lindsey.gov.uk 
 

Councillor Paul Skinner 

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: Environment & Performance Committee  

DATE: 27th April 2021 

SUBJECT: Regulating and Safeguarding Boston’s Economy Task and Finish 

Group – Update on agreed Recommendations  

KEY DECISION: 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:                             

No 

Councillor Paul Skinner 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

WARD(S) AFFECTED:  

Christian Allen, Assistant Director Regulation  

All 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

The Task and Finish Group, established under the auspices of the Environment and Performance 

Committee, were requested to undertake a review called:  Regulating and Safeguarding 

Boston’s Economy. The Task and Finish Group arrived at 13 Recommendations which were 

referred by the parent committee to Cabinet on 2nd December 2020 where they were 

subsequently approved in their entirety for implementation.  

Members have requested regular updates on progress towards implementing each of the 13 

recommendations and this is the first of those reports. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That members receive this update, noting completion of the Task and Finish Group: Regulating 

and Safeguarding Boston’s Economy, recommendations 1 to 11; and agree to a further update 

being brought before this Committee when a response to recommendation 12 and 13 has been 

determined by Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC). 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To keep members appraised of progress made to date in implementing the agreed 

recommendations. 

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 3



 

 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
None  

 

REPORT 

1. Background of Review 
 

1.1. The Environment and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee at Boston 

Borough Council receives quarterly performance monitoring data, aligned to the 

corporate priorities of the committee, as part of their annual work programme. The 

committee also receives a statutory annual update report in respect of anti-social 

behaviour (ASB) and CCTV functions performed by the Council. 

 

1.2. At the Environment and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting held 

on the 24 September 2019, members voiced concern at the number of complaints 

raised by the public in respect of ASB in the borough. The complaints covered a broad 

range of ASB together with incidents at licensed premises in relation to alleged sale of 

illegal alcohol in the borough. The Committee agreed to investigate the matters further, 

initially holding an Inquiry Evening hosted by Council Officers and the Police, at which it 

was determined to establish a Task and Finish Group to consider and explore matters in 

more depth.  

 

2. Inquiry Evening  

 

2.1. The Inquiry Evening sought to shape the scope and depth of the Task and Finish Group 

work and the output was ratified by the Committee on 5th November 2019. The areas 

members agreed the Task and Finish would look into were as follows: 

 

2.1.1. Alcohol and premises licensing and associated enforcement. 

 

2.1.2. Trading Standards and HMRC powers, polices, procedures and enforcement options / 

outcomes for dealing with counterfeit and non-duty paid goods. 

 

2.1.3. Home Office and Police powers, policies and procedures for dealing with those with no 

recourse to public funds and those not exercising their treaty right. 

 

2.1.4. Housing and Homelessness duties, options and support models.  

 

2.1.5. Boston Borough Council Public Space Protection Orders and other Boston Borough 

Council enforcement. 

 

2.1.6. Tasking the local MP to lobby Government with the outputs from the Task and Finish 

Group where a change in the law was deemed to be needed. 

 

Page 44



 

 

 

3. Cabinet  
 

3.1. The output, notes from meetings, statements and supporting documentation generated 

by the Task and Finish Group have been reported through previous meetings of this 

Committee and are matter of public record. Councillor Judith Skinner, Madam Chairman 

of both Environment and Performance Committee and Task and Finish Group, 

presented a final report to Cabinet on 2nd December 2020, where 13 recommendations  

agreed following the Task and Finish Group review, were accepted by Cabinet. It was 

also agreed that regular updates on the progress with implementing the 13 

recommendations would be provided to the Environment and Performance Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee until such point that all the recommendations had been 

concluded. 

 

4. Progress to date of each Recommendation 
 

4.1. Each of the 13 recommendations are reproduced in full below, followed by a summary 

of the actions taken, whether the action is concluded or if not, when it is anticipated the 

action will be concluded. 

  

4.2. Recommendation 1 – That a call for a change in the legislation to be tabled to prevent 

the sale of alcohol during an appeal period and that the Member of Parliament for 

Boston be asked to champion such a change regardless of the government’s apparent 

lack of appetite to do so. 
 

Update – The Council Leader wrote to the Rt. Hon. Priti Patel Home Secretary on 13th 

January 2021 and put to her recommendations 1 to 6 as set out in this report. The letter 

was also copied to Mr Matt Warman MP. The letter sent by The Leader is attached at 

appendix A and the subsequent reply from the Home Office, dated 16th February, is 

attached at appendix B, and has already been circulated to Members of the Task and 

Finish Group. Completed. 

 

4.3. Recommendation 2 – That Government, take into consideration the significant loss of 

revenue to the U.K from increasing sales of illicit tobacco, implement Licensing of the 

sale of tobacco. 
 

Update – see 4.2 above. Completed. 

 

4.4. Recommendation 3 – That closure of a business found to be in breach of its alcohol 

licence conditions to be immediate until an official Licensing hearing determined its 

future. 
 

Update – see 4.2 above. Completed. 

  

4.5. Recommendation 4 – That the Police and Senior Council Officers be empowered to 

serve FPNs for breach of licence conditions. 
 

Update – see 4.2 above. Completed. 

 

Page 45



 

 

 

4.6. Recommendation 5 – That all 11 responsible authorities be required to give 

consideration to all licence applications / reviews of licences and be encouraged to take 

greater involvement by providing clear, concise feedback. 
 

Update – see 4.2 above. The Leader of the Council wrote to each of the 11 responsible 

authorities listed in the Licencing Act on 13th January 2021. A copy of the letter is 

attached at appendix C. No replies have been received from any of the Responsible 

Authorities written to. Completed. 

 

4.7. Recommendation 6 – That Parliament be asked for an increase in Alcohol Licensing 

fees. 
 

Update – see 4.2 above. Completed. 

 

4.8. Recommendation 7 – That the Council provide greater education of the public and of 

parish councils in their rights to respond to Licensing applications and that guidance be 

readily available and circulated where possible. 
 

Update – see 4.2 above. The Leader of the Council wrote to the Chair of each of the 

Parish Councils in the Borough of Boston on 13th January 2021. A copy of the letter is 

attached at appendix D. No replies have been received from any of the parish councils. 

Completed. 

 

4.9. Recommendation 8 – That Boston Community Alcohol Partnership (CAP) be requested 

to promote its success to date and popularise itself in the media/social media 

particularly. 
 

Update – The paragraph below has been provided by Inspector Fran Harrod 

Coordinator of Boston CAP; 

On 31st March 2021 Boston CAP won the national award for ‘CAP of the Year’, presented 

by our MP Matt Warman, a great honour for the CAP and the town and highlighting the 

resilience and determination to tackle alcohol harm among young people, improve their 

health and wellbeing and enhance their communities during a challenging 

time. Numerous partners sit on the CAP, including Police, Boston Borough Council, 

Health and Wellbeing Services, National and Independent retailers, education, faith 

groups and charities. 

The CAP has achieved some notable successes since its launch in 2016, with big 

reductions in alcohol sales to under-18s, in the number of residents reporting young 

people being drunk and rowdy in public places and the incidence of alcohol related litter 

in the town. The percentage of 13, 14, 15 and 16 year old students saying that they drink 

alcohol on a weekly basis has reduced from 13% to 7%. And the proportion of licensees 

selling to people who appear under age without checking for identification has reduced 

from 77.8 per cent in 2017 to zero in 2020. 

 

 

Page 46



 

 

 

The CAP is proud of the way it involves young people in its work. It engages with local 

schools and colleges and provides work experience to learners on Boston College 

Uniformed Public Services course, inviting them along on Challenge 25 and refusals 

checks and involving them in residents and licensing surveys. 

CAP has helped us with gaps in our strategy, such as ensuring challenge 25 and other 

key messages have been translated into different languages for display, so that all 

communities can benefit from the CAPs work.  

During lockdown the CAP came up with some innovative ways to get its messages out to 

the community about the risks of underage drinking, including circulating alcohol 

awareness videos to schools and young people’s centres and placing eye catching 

bollard covers around the town. A police display vehicle made frequent rounds, using its 

large screen on the side of the vehicle to show messages and videos, while the RoadHoG 

Christian Outreach Bus has supported the wellbeing messages of CAP as and when it has 

been possible for it to operate. 

Going forward we have plans for a variety of in person events in the town, and resuming 

our activities with young people from schools and the college, at a time where the 

wellbeing of our young people has never been more important. 

 

4.10. Recommendation 9 – That reporting of ASB activity be produced and issued quarterly 

for members of the public. That the reporting provided be comparative to incidents 

within Horncastle and Skegness over the same period. That the report be within a frame 

of reference, identifying the activity both per capita and numeric. That the reporting be 

issued on the Council’s website for ease of access by the public and also an item be 

produced within the Council’s newsletter advising of the new reporting facility and the 

link to access it.  
 

Update – An ASB activity performance report has been prepared and published on the 

council’s website. This is linked to the Community Safety pages and the Council’s 

newsletter for the first time in January 2021. A cycle of quarterly reports has now been 

set up to maintain this reporting mechanism for the future. Completed. 

 

4.11. Recommendation 10 – That a notice be included on the Council’s website providing the 

general police contact link for reporting of non-urgent crime. The notice to include a 

caveat stressing the link is only for non-urgent crime. 
 

Update – An update of the Community Safety pages on the Council’s Website was 

undertaken in January 2021 and a link is now included for reporting non-urgent crime to 

the Police. Completed. 

 

4.12. Recommendation 11 – That discussions are held between the Council and the Police to 

agree a way forward in facilitating regular public meetings, to allow questions by public 

in respect of policing matters. One option being to provide quarterly or monthly Q and 

A session meeting to allow all members of the public across the borough to participate.  

 

Page 47



 

 

Update – Lincolnshire Police Inspector Fran Harrod, supported by the Council’s 

Community Safety Manager Peter Hunn, have started conducting public Facebook Live 

events. The public attending on-line are provided with updates on policing and anti-

social behaviour work before being invited to help set policing priorities for the next 

quarter. During Facebook Live events, public questions are answered by Officers in 

attendance. These events will repeat every six weeks throughout 2021, hosted by the 

Police and Council Officers, incorporating Q and A from the public attending and 

shaping policing priorities for the quarter ahead. Completed. 

 

4.13. Recommendation 12 – That the council consider locking the Central Park gates 

overnight to address on-going issues of ASB within the park. That if required a trial 

period of four months be agreed to allow monitoring of incidents during that time to 

either support or not, the closing of the gates permanently overnight. That agreement is 

reached as to who fund the cost of who will close the gates and that a request be made 

to the BTAC committee for such funding for the trial, or if agreed on a permanent basis. 
 

Update – Cabinet agreed to delegate this recommendation to BTAC at their meeting on 

2nd December 2021. BTAC agreed to accept the recommendation on 3rd February 2021 

where Officers were requested to present a report of options and their respective costs 

of providing a service to open and lock Central Park gates. This report is being prepared 

for the BTAC meeting in May 2021.  

 

4.14. Recommendation 13 – That BTAC be requested to consider the funding of a service for 

Central Park to address ongoing ASB in the park.  
 

Update – Cabinet agreed to delegate this recommendation to BTAC at their meeting on 

2nd December 2021. BTAC agreed to accept the recommendation on 3rd February 2021 

where Officers were requested to present a report of options and their respective costs 

of providing security / high visibility patrols in Central Park. This report is being 

prepared for the BTAC meeting in May 2021.  

 

5. CONCLUSION 

 
5.1. The purpose of this committee report is to show progress and status against each of the 

13 recommendations put forward by the Task and Finish Group. Members can see that 

with the exception of recommendation 12 and 13,  which are being progressed by BTAC, 

all remaining recommendations have been completed as agreed. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

Page 48



 

 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

None 

 

CONSULTATION 

Consultation has been undertaken with Madam Chairman of the Environment and Performance 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Councillor Judith Skinner and the Leader Portfolio Holder 

Councillor Paul Skinner 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A: Letter from the Leader of the Council to the Right Honourable Priti Patel Home 

Secretary dated 13th January 2021. 

Appendix B: Letter of reply from the Home Office to the Leader of the Council dated 16th 

February 2021 

Appendix C: Letter from The Leader of the Council to the 11 Responsible Authorities as 

recognised in the Licensing Act, dated 13th January 2021. 

Appendix D: Letter from the Leader of the Council to the Parish Council Chairs of Boston 

Borough Council, dated 13th January 2021. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

(If none then insert the working ‘No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local 

Government Act 1972 were used in the production of this report.’  Also delete the below 

text/boxes.) Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document 

title 

Where the document can be viewed 

Cabinet 

papers 

and 

minutes 2 

December 

2020 

https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=1706

&Ver=4 

Page 49

https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=1706&Ver=4
https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=1706&Ver=4


 

 

 

 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

(If none then insert the wording ‘A report on this item has not been previously considered by a 

Council body’.  Also delete the below text/boxes.) 

Name of body Date 

Environment and Performance Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee 

24th September 2020 

Cabinet 2nd December 2020 

Boston Town Area Committee 

(recommendations 12 and 13 only) 

3rd February 2021 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Christian Allen Assistant Director Regulation 

Signed off by: Christian Allen Assistant Director Regulation 

Approved for publication: Councillor Paul Skinner, Leader and Portfolio 

Holder 

 

 

Page 50



 

 

 

 

 
   

 
13 January 2021 
 
Right Honourable Priti Patel MP 
Secretary of State for the Home Department 
Palace of Westminster 
Westminster 
LONDON 
SW1A 0AA 
 
 
 

Our ref: 
 
Tel:       07941 604177 
E:mail:  paul.skinner@boston.gov.uk  
 

Dear Rt. Hon. Priti Patel MP, Home Secretary 
 
Regulating & Safeguarding Boston’s Economy 
 
As elected members of Boston Borough Council we are committed to ensuring a safe 
environment for our residents.  Having received ongoing public complaints of anti-social 
behaviour within the borough and concerns relating to alcohol licensing, a task and 
finish group under the auspices of the parent Environmental & Performance Committee 
carried out an in depth review into regulating and safeguarding Boston’s economy. 
 
One strand of the review was to meet with representatives from both the Police and 
Council Licensing Teams.  Following this meeting the Task and Finish Group made 
recommendations to take forward to Parliament.  These recommendations were 
subsequently agreed and accepted by the Cabinet. 
 
I set out below the recommendations approved by Cabinet and request that your 
department give due consideration to inviting Parliamentary consideration of the 
proposals; through amendments to the current licensing regime: 
 

1. That a call for change in the legislation be tabled to prevent the sale of alcohol 
during an appeal period and that the Member of Parliament for Boston be asked 
to champion such a change regardless of the government’s apparent lack of 
appetite to do so. 

 
2. That the Government, take into consideration the significant loss of revenue to 

the UK from increasing sales of illicit tobacco, implement licensing of the sale of 
tobacco. 
 

3. That closure of a business found to be in breach of its alcohol licence conditions 
be immediate until an official licensing hearing determined its future. 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, Lincolnshire, PE21 8QR 
 

Page 51



 

 

 

4. That the Police and senior council officers be empowered to serve fixed penalty 
notices for breach of licence conditions. 
 

5. That all 11 responsible authorities be required to give consideration to all licence 
applications/reviews of licences. 
 

6. That Parliament be asked for an increase in the alcohol licensing fees. 
 

A copy of the full review can be viewed on our website at: 
 
https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s11217/Task%20and%20Finish%20Group
%20Report.pdf 

 
I look forward to receiving your response. 
 

 
 
Yours sincerely 
Paul Skinner 
Leader of Boston Borough Council 
 
Cc Mr M Warman, MP for Boston & Skegness. 
 

 
 

Page 52

https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s11217/Task%20and%20Finish%20Group%20Report.pdf
https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s11217/Task%20and%20Finish%20Group%20Report.pdf


   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
          
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 53



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 54



 

 

 

 

 
   

 
13 January 2021 
 
 
Letter sent to all Responsible Authorities 
defined under the LA03 
 
 
 
 
 

Our Ref: 
 
Tel:      
E-mail:    
 

 
 
07941 604177 
Paul.Skinner@boston.gov.uk  
 

Dear Sirs 

 
Regulating & Safeguarding Boston’s Economy 

 
As elected members of Boston Borough Council we are committed to ensuring a safe 
environment for our residents and wish to work with our statutory partners to achieve the 
best outcomes we can for our community.  Having received ongoing public complaints 
of anti-social behaviour within the borough and concerns relating to alcohol licensing, a 
task and finish group under the auspices of the parent Environmental & Performance 
Committee carried out an in depth review into regulating and safeguarding Boston’s 
economy.  
 
One strand of the review was to meet with representatives from both the Police and 
Council Licensing Teams.  Following this meeting the Task and Finish Group made a 
number of recommendations which were subsequently agreed and accepted by the 
Cabinet. 
 
One of the recommendations was that Responsible Authorities be required to give 
consideration to all licence applications / reviews of licences and be encouraged to take 
greater involvement by providing clear, concise feedback. 
 
To support this recommendation I am requesting, if you do not already do so, you 
appraise each alcohol licence application and review received.  I further request, where 
a failure to promote the licensing objectives is identified, and where appropriate to do 
so, you submit written representation, as defined under the Licensing Act 2003, outlining 
the nature of the identified failure and suggested steps to remedy it.  By receiving 
relevant representations from our partners, who have the knowledge and expertise in 
their own field, it will give the Licensing Authority grounds, having held a hearing and 
determined it appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, to attach robust 
and enforceable conditions to licences. 
   
Should you require any advice regarding the licensing process you may wish to refer to 
the statutory guidance issued under section 182 of The Licensing Act 2003. 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, Lincolnshire, PE21 8QR 
 

Page 55



 

 

 

 
I look forward to you giving this request full consideration and proactively engaging with 
the licensing process going forward. 
 
Yours faithfully  
 

 
 
Paul Skinner 
Leader of Boston Borough Council 
 

 
 

Page 56



 

 

 

 

 
   

 
13 January 2021 
 
Letter sent to all Parish Council Chairs 
 
 
 

Our Ref: 
 
Tel:      
E-mail:    
 

 
 
07941 604177 
Paul.Skinner@boston.gov.uk  
 

Dear Parish Councillor 
 

Regulating & Safeguarding Boston’s Economy 
 

Having received ongoing public complaints of anti-social behaviour within the borough and 
concerns relating to alcohol licensing, a task and finish group under the auspices of the parent 
Environmental & Performance Committee carried out an in depth review into regulating and 
safeguarding Boston’s economy. 
 
One strand of the review was to meet with representatives from both the Police and Council 
Licensing Teams.  Following this meeting the Task and Finish Group made a number of 
recommendations which were subsequently agreed and accepted by the Cabinet. 
 
One of the recommendations was that the Council provide greater education of the public and 
parish councils in their rights to respond to licensing applications and that guidance be readily 
available and circulated where possible. 
 
You may be aware, at an early stage, of problems arising within your parish and you have an 
important role in being able to support the community to live and work in a safe environment.   
 
As a Parish Councillor you can make representation both in favour or against the grant of a 
licence for the sale of alcohol within your parish.  Such a representation can either be on behalf 
of residents/applicants who have sought support from their Parish Council; from the Parish 
Council itself; or individually in your capacity as a Parish Councillor.  Parish Councils and 
councillors can also submit applications to review licences where problems from the sale of 
alcohol are occurring. 
 
To date there has been some engagement by Parish Councils in the licensing application 
process. However, as a Borough Council we would like to encourage and support the parishes to 
be involved more proactively in the licensing process and feel they have adequate knowledge to 
do so with confidence. 
 
Our website page provides advice on submitting representations and reviewing licences.  This 
can be found at  www.mybostonuk.com/licensing/premises-licence/  
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, Lincolnshire, PE21 8QR 
 

Page 57

http://www.mybostonuk.com/licensing/premises-licence/


 

 

 

I would like to offer the services of our Licensing Manager, Fiona White, to support you in 
growing your knowledge of alcohol licensing law and understanding what can and cannot be 
considered when supporting or objecting to an application.  I invite you to email any requests 
for advice or information to Fiona at licensing@boston.gov.uk  or telephoning her on 01205 
314242.  Fiona is also available to attend one of your meetings to provide a presentation on 
alcohol licensing law, give advice on the matters outlined above and answer any questions you 
may have. 
 
I look forward to you giving this full consideration and proactively engaging with the licensing 
process going forward. 
 
Yours faithfully  
 

 
 
Paul Skinner 
Leader of Boston Borough Council 

 
 

Page 58

mailto:licensing@boston.gov.uk

	Agenda
	A. MINUTES
	1 MEMBER LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY - 2021 to 2024
	Appendix A.  draft Councillor Development Strategy

	2 WORK PROGRAMME
	Q3. Performance Monitoring Report
	Committee Work Programme 2020 to 2022
	Forward Plan

	3 REGULATING AND SAFEGUARDING BOSTON'S ECONOMY TASK AND FINISH GROUP - UPDATE ON AGREED RECOMMENDATIONS
	Appendix A. Leaders letter to the Home Secretary 130121
	Appendix B. HomeOfficeReply 270221
	Appendix C. Responsible authority letter 130121
	Appendix D. Letter from the Leader of the Council to Parish Council Chairs 130121


